
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

July 1, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the June 17, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Applications for licenses, raffles, and special events permits. 
c. Second Access permit application.  

 

6. Vision Zero Coordinator Theresa Liebsch: 

A. Vision Zero update.  

7. County Engineer Hall: 

a. PUBLIC HEARING for section line vacation request.  

8. County Planning Director Flanagan: 

a. Variance request.  

9. Finance Director Jacobs: 

a. Detention Center Sales tax bond update. 

b. Continuation of Detention Center maintenance fund discussion.  

10. Sheriff Leben: 

a. Burleigh East discussion.  

11. Elections Coordinator Hart: 

a. Primary Election recap.  

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


12. Comm. Bakken. 

a. BNSF Railway update.  

13. Other business. 

14. Adjourn. 

COUNTY WEED BOARD 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Consideration of the June 17, 2024, minutes, and bills.  

4. Discussion on temporary worker.  

5. Other business. 

6. Adjourn.  

 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on July 15, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

JUNE 17TH, 2024 

 

5:00 PM Moment of silence in honor of former Burleigh County Comm. Bill Delmore and Pledge of 
Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Chairman Bitner were 
present. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the meeting agenda. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the May 31st, 2024 special meeting and June 
3rd, 2024 meeting minutes and bills. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on 
file and available for inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Jesse Baker 2022 
Lot 16, Block 19, Meadow 
Valley 4th 

50% Disabled 
Veteran $243,900  $198,900  

Jesse Baker 2023 
Lot 16, Block 19, Meadow 
Valley 4th 

60% Disabled 
Veteran $249,500  $195,500  

Steven & 
Deborah Van 
Berkom 2023 

Block 3, Auditor's Lot 2A 
being a part of Lot 2, 
Promontory Point II 

70% Disabled 
Veteran $570,400  $444,400  

Michelle Welder 2022 Lot 7, Block 1, High Meadows 

True and full 
value exceeds 
market value; 
nonexisting 
improvement 
assessed $371,800  $327,800  

Michelle Welder 2023 Lot 7, Block 1, High Meadows 

True and full 
value exceeds 
market value; 
nonexisting 
improvement 
assessed $399,900  $355,900  

Thomas & Kellie 
Erhardt 2023 

Lot 4, Block 1, Rolling 
Meadows 

50% Disabled 
Veteran $331,500  $241,500  



 

Harold Rants Jr 2023 2001 Yellowstone 28 x 60 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $67,872  $0  

Harold Rants Jr 2024 2001 Yellowstone 28 x 60 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $67,872  $0  

Darlene Steffan 2023 

Lot 5, Block 2, Pebble Creek 
9th Condo Assoc Unit 1, 
Garage Unit 1 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $199,900  $0  

 
Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the Jesse Baker (2), Steven & Deborah Van 
Berkom, Michelle Welder (2), Thomas & Kellie Erhardt, Harold Rants Jr (2), and Darlene Steffan 
abatements plus the remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. 

Doug Moser, Jared Newton, and Eric Weber from the US Fish and Wildlife Service came to the 
Commission to request a motion of support for the sale of land by Rice Lake in Burleigh County. Moser 
explained that they were approached by Virgil Gluth to sell his property to the National Wildlife Refuge 
System; for the process of transferring land to continue moving forward, one of the things the US Fish and 
Wildlife Service needs to do is reach out to the county commission to get a signed letter at a later date. 
Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to support the sale of land by Rice Lake. Comm. 
Woodcox, Munson, Bakken, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Schwab voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

County Planning Director Flanagan presented to the Commission an appeal of complaint from Jonathan 
Byers regarding the issue of two residential properties on one lot. A complaint was filed against Mr. Byers 
because the double garage on his property was being used as a residence. Jonathan Byers then 
approached the podium and explained that the original owner of the property -- Francis Sanger – lived in 
the garage while he was obtaining a permit to build the main residence on the property. The garage has 
had a kitchen, bedroom, laundry room, and bathroom in it since its construction under Sanger, and was 
advertised as a guest house when the property went up for sale in 2004. Although Byers’ father-in-law did 
live in the garage-guest house for a time until his recent passing, Byers argued that because he was a 
family member and never paid rent to live there, there was never any violation of Burleigh County 
ordinances. Byers also emphasized that he knew he was unable to rent out the garage-guest house, and 
never had any intentions of renting the property to anyone. Because no one was currently living in the 
garage-guest house and with Director Flanagan making efforts to create a countywide accessory dwelling 
ordinance to account for a developing nationwide trend, a motion was made by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by 
Comm. Munson to dismiss the complaint levied against Mr. Byers. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. County Engineer Hall made a quick appearance to request the Commission approve a 
pavement waiver as part of the approval of the Fleck subdivision. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by 
Comm. Bakken to approve the request. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Flanagan then 
returned to present a recommendation for approval of the Fleck subdivision final plat. Motion by Comm. 
Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the Fleck subdivision final plat. All members present voted, 
“AYE”. Motion carried. Flanagan thereafter presented a recommendation for approval of the Riverside 3rd 
final subdivision plat. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Riverside 3rd final 



 

subdivision plat. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Flanagan lastly presented a 
recommendation for approval of the Peaceful View final plat. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. 
Bakken to approve the Peaceful View final plat. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Executive Director Rachael Lukaszewski then came forth to the 
Commission to request approval of the 2024 Functional Classified Network. The network helps establish 
urbanized boundaries for the region and is designed to allow for roads to receives federal grant aid for 
construction or maintenance. Lukaszewski informed the commissioners that frontage roads and new 
collectors were added to the network, and that the urbanized area boundaries came in a little. Motion by 
Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve Lukaszewski’s request. All members present voted 
“AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Engineer Hall presented to the Commission an underground easement request from MDU across 
Burleigh County property. Hall stated that after working out the finer details and rewriting the easement in a 
more consistent form, he recommended that the Commission approve the request. Motion by Comm. 
Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the underground easement request. All members present voted 
“AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Finance Director Jacobs gave another update regarding the Detention Center sales tax, stating that 
while the sales tax measure has passed the situation on the ground has not changed. Burleigh County has 
the capacity to pay off its portion of the bond, but Morton County is still lagging behind. Timing remains a 
big issue as well. With the recent approval of the one cent sales tax in the June 11th primary election, there 
may not be enough time to collect funds when the tax goes into full effect, so the sooner it’s enacted the 
more tax can be collected and used for intended purposes. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. 
Bakken to initiate the process for the one cent sales tax based on the recent election. Comm. Woodcox, 
Munson, Bakken, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Schwab voted “NAY”. Motion carried. Lee then stated 
that some bonds will need to be liquidated and proposed retaining a bidding agent to assist in the process. 
Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to move forward as presented. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Jacobs then went on to touch on the BMD maintenance fund; however, this 
item was carried over to the next commission meeting agenda for further discussion. 

Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski presented to the Commission a new liquor license application from Jocelyn 
Miller for the Crossroads Tavern; the Commission was informed that Hay Creek township reviewed and 
rejected the application for a new liquor license. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to not 
approve the license application for Crossroads. Prior to voting, the discussion on the matter continued as 
Jocelyn Miller came forward and informed the Commission that the Crossroads Tavern was being sold to 
Ryan Deichert. Deichert then took to the podium and asked the Commission if Miller could be approved on 
the license to operate the Crossroads on the interim until Deichert can obtain a state’s license. Major Hulm 
from the Sheriff’s Department then came forward and informed the Commission that since the May 31st 
special meeting on the topic, on June 9th at 2:00 am deputies from the Sheriff’s Department were called to 
the Crossroads for a medical assist; upon arriving, they were greeted by a large crowd which hindered their 
ability to assist. While there, they also encountered a domestic incident. Hulm also informed the 
Commission that the day prior on June 16th at 1:46am the Sheriff’s Department had to respond to a shots 
fired call in the Crossroads parking lot. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to not approve 
the license application for Crossroads still stood – all members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 



 

Chairman Bitner shared with the Commission that he received a phone call from a county resident 
concerning the ballot language on the one cent sales, and how it wasn’t as clear as it should’ve been. 
Bitner also shared with the Commission another phone call from a different county resident concerning the 
mowing of grasses & lawns next to roadways, asking to publicize the risks of blowing grass onto roads and 
how they affect traffic. Bitner also mentioned that after some discussion with the county auditor and 
elections director that the county hopes to see in the future a Q&A survey and summary from election poll 
workers to gauge how the election went and where operations can improve. 

 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman 



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-634 Marjean Schwehr 2023

Block 2, Gateway Commons, Tract 2705A 
of part of Lot 1 Gateway Plaza Condo, 
Building 2705 Unit 5 50% Homestead Credit $127,700 $63,850

24-635 Mary Magstadt 2023 Lot 2, Block 1, Ashwood 4th 100% Homestead Credit $415,500 $215,500

24-636 Karen Baumgartner 2023
Block 1, Grandview Heights, Lots 4-5 & Lot 
A of Lot 6 Grandview Arms Condo Unit 15 50% Homestead Credit $107,200 $53,600



















































 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 



 

 

 

PUBLIC 
HEARING 





Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line















 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 8 









 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 12 



Mark Splonskowski
Line



 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

WEED 
BOARD 



 
BURLEIGH COUNTY PARK BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 
JUNE 17, 2024 

 
6:34 P.M  
Chairman Bakken called the Burleigh County Weed Board meeting to order.  
 
A roll call of members: Commissioners Munson, Woodcox, Bitner, Schwab, and Chairman Bakken present. 
 
Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski presented to the Board three bids for herbicide and one bid for a chemical 
applicator, and asked the Board for direction on where to move forward. Comm. Schwab brought to the 
attention of the Board that one of the bids for herbicide was received electronically, and asked if the Board 
can still accept an electronic bid. After some discussion, motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. 
Munson to allow the electronic bid for consideration. All member present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 
Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to accept the low bid per chemical basis and to split the 
order on any chemical that they are the same. All member present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. In terms of 
the applicator bid, Splonskowski expressed that the sole bid received did not fulfill all the requirements the 
Board desires. Motion by Comm. Bitner, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to reject the bid for chemical applicator. All 
member present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Some discussion ensured afterwards regarding how spraying 
is going to happen this year. Comm. Schwab explained that they have a weed officer now, but that they still 
need to be trained in order to be licensed. Comm. Schwab offered to continue calling other counties to see 
they could spare some manpower over to Burleigh County for work opportunities. After some more 
discussion, it was agreed that Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski with Comm. Schwab would rework the bid 
while the Board pursued other paths and options 
 
 
Meeting adjourned.  
 
______________________________                      ________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Auditor/Treasurer                      Steve Bakken, Chairman 


	July 1, 2024
	June 17th 2024 Minutes
	Abatement letter July 1, 2024
	Sheet1

	BISMARCK CANCER CENTER FOUNDATION
	Consent DAKOTA JUNIOR GOLF ASSOCIATION - APPLE CREEK COUNTRY CLUB_Redacted
	Consent DAKOTA JUNIOR GOLF ASSOCIATION - HAWKTREE_Redacted
	Consent FURRY FRIENDS ROCKIN RESCUE_Redacted
	Consent HAWKTREE INC_Redacted
	Consent HEARTVIEW FOUNDATION_Redacted
	Consent Lost Surety Bond - CHK#128906 and 128907 6.19.2024
	Consent 2nd acces permit
	#7
	Public Hearing
	PUBLIC HEARING vacation of section line
	#8
	Mitch 1.1
	Mitch 1.2
	Mitch 1.3
	#12
	Bakken
	County Weed Board
	June 17th 2024 Weed Board minutes



